
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Wednesday, 3 November 2021 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Thursday, 11 November 2021 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
in the 

Ageas Suite, Ageas Bowl, Botley Road, Southampton, SO30 3RS 

 
 
TO: Councillor Ian Corben (Chair) 
 Councillor Keith House (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor David Airey 
Councillor Tim Groves 
Councillor Louise Parker-Jones 
 

Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Derek Pretty 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2021. 
 

3.   Public Participation  
 
Public seating will be limited at this meeting due to the current Covid-19 
pandemic. You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following 
email: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
midday on Wednesday 10 November 2021. Please let us know if you wish to 
attend the meeting in person so that we can manage numbers. We encourage 
those attending to wear a mask and take a test to ensure that they are not at risk 
of infecting anyone with Covid-19. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.   Interim Review of Polling Stations and Polling Places 2021 (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 22 November 2021 at 6:00 pm 

In the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 13 September 2021  (6:32 pm – 6:39 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Corben (Chair); Councillors House, Airey, Groves, Parker-
Jones and Park 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Pretty 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

13. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2021 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

15. APPROVAL OF SUSPENSION OF COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULES 
RELATING TO COVID-19 
 
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer presented the 
report. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
The Committee approved a suspension pursuant to Section 85 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, of the six-month Councillor attendance 
rule, until the next Council Annual General Meeting when this could 
be reviewed. 
 

3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE  

Thursday, 11 November 2021  

INTERIM REVIEW OF POLLING STATIONS AND POLLING PLACES 
2021 

Report of the Acting Returning Officer (ARO) 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) The findings of the interim polling review are noted, and the Committee’s 

thanks to respondents be recorded; 

(2) In Chandler’s Ford the polling station for CH3, which is currently at Toynbee 
School be moved to Chandler’s Ford Parish Offices, Fryern Hill Pavilion, 
Greenways, Chandler’s Ford; 

(3) Eastleigh North polling districts EN2 and EN3 who currently vote at 
Crestwood Community School be moved to St Peter’s Church, Shakespeare 
Road, Eastleigh; 

(4) In Eastleigh North, polling station EN5 be moved to The Café at Eastleigh 
House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh to cease use of Shakespeare Junior 
School; 

(5) Hiltingbury polling station for HI3, which currently votes at Scantabout 
Primary School, be moved to Chandler’s Ford Library, Oakmount Road, 
Chandler’s Ford; 

(6) Committee notes the relocation of two additional polling stations where 
venues have become unavailable.   

(7) All other polling stations and places remain unchanged. 

 

Summary 
 
Section 18C of the Representation of the People Act (RPA) 1983, as amended by the 
Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013, requires the Council to carry out a 
review of polling districts and polling places in its area with a period of 16 months of 1 
October 2013 and then within a period of 16 months from the 1 October of every fifth year 
after that.  The last compulsory review was completed in October 2019.  

However, this requirement does not prevent a local authority from conducting a review at 
any time and it has become necessary to carry out an interim review to assess the 

5

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

suitability of polling places where the existing polling station is within a school building 
following the 6 May 2021 elections. 

The Government confirmed that the May 2021 elections would go ahead for the elections 
that were delayed from 2020 due to the pandemic of Covid-19 alongside the scheduled 
elections for 2021.   
 
Both the Minister of State for School Standards along with the Minister of State for the 
Cabinet Office wrote to Returning Officers and Headteachers of schools in England, to ask 
Returning Officers to limit the use of schools as polling stations and to look at other 
available venues first. 
 
At short notice Returning Officers were instructed to find alternative venues which caused 
immense pressure on polling arrangements and local relationships between Returning 
Officers and Headteachers.   
 
The Returning Officer for Eastleigh recognised the concerns about using schools as 
polling stations and sought alternative venues to minimise disruption to pupils’ education.   
 
To support this approach for all future elections the Acting Returning Officer (ARO) is 
carrying out an interim review of polling places and polling stations to ask Councillors to 
consider the recommendations which proposes that those polling stations that were 
temporarily changed on 6 May 2021 agree they become permanent polling stations for all 
elections. 
 

The review must not be confused with changing any district ward boundaries; this review 
focuses on the polling stations which are assigned to each polling district. 

The arrangements made for Parliamentary elections are also used at other elections.  
 
A consultation was carried out between 9 August and 20 September 2021.  This involved a 
consultation notice and background information being placed on the Council’s website, 
placing alerts through different social media platforms (E-news, Twitter, Facebook) as well 
as directly contacting elected persons (MPs and Borough Councillors), parish and town 
councils, Headteachers, County Returning Officer & Winchester ARO and persons and 
organisations’ with particular expertise in relation to access to premises for people with 
different forms of disability and local community groups.  

The ARO’s final report will seek approval from the Council’s Administration Committee, 
which has delegated powers to designate polling districts.  The new polling places and 
polling stations will take effect upon publication of the revised Register of Electors on 1 
December 2021. 

Statutory Powers 
 
The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013. 

Representation of the People Act 1983, Schedule A1 (RPA 1983) 

 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to a statutory function and good governance arrangements 
which underpin all the objectives in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025. 

Proposed Changes 

2. Chandler’s Ford Borough Ward: 

Polling District Polling Station Proposals 

CH3  Toynbee School 
Bodycoats Road 

Move to Chandler’s Ford Parish 
Offices, Fryern Hill Pavilion, 
Greenways, Chandler’s Ford 

The proposed venue was used for the May 2021 combined elections was 
found to be entirely suitable for a polling station with level access throughout 
and all the necessary facilities.  The single road access did not prove an issue 
and no complaints were received by voters or staff regarding the location. 

Eastleigh North Borough Wards: 

Polling District Polling Station Proposals 

EN2 Crestwood Community 
School, Shakespeare 
Road, Eastleigh 

 

St Peter’s Church 
Shakespeare Road, 
Eastleigh 

 

EN3 Crestwood Community 
School, Shakespeare 
Road, Eastleigh 

EN5 Shakespeare Junior 
School, St Catherine’s 
Road, Eastleigh 

The Café, Eastleigh 
House, Upper Market 
Street, Eastleigh 

The proposal for using St Peter’s Church has been welcomed by both the 
Vicar and management of the Church.  The venue was previously used for 
one polling station and has been assessed a suitable for polling station use.  
The venue is also close to the existing venue so it will have no impact to 
voters in terms of distanced travelled. 

Eastleigh House Café was trialed successfully on 6 May 2021 and was found 
to be fully accessible to all with ample space and facilities.  The County 
Returning Officer also supported the change of venue. 

Hiltingbury Borough Ward: 

Polling District Polling Station Proposals 

HI3 Scantabout Primary Chandler’s Ford Library, 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

School, Ionic Close, 
Chandler’s Ford 

Oakmount Road, 
Chandler’s Ford  

The proposed change venue was used for 6 May 2021 combined election to 
avoid disruption to the primary school and was well received by staff and 
voters.  The venue had ample space and was easily accessible with good 
facilities.   

Additional recommendations – venues no longer available: 

Chandler’s Ford Borough Ward: 

Polling District Polling Station Proposals 

CH1 United Reformed Church, 
Kings Road, Chandler’s 
Ford 

St Boniface Church, 
Hursley Road, Chandler’s 
Ford 

The ARO has been informed of the permanent closure of the United 
Reformed Church.  The proposed alternative venue, St Boniface Church, was 
suggested by Borough Ward Councillors and has been evaluated as a 
suitable new venue being close to the border of polling district with plenty of 
space, accessible to all voters and having parking nearby on the same side of 
Hursley Road.  

Bishopstoke Borough Ward: 

Polling District Polling Station Proposals 

BI2 Memorial Hall,  Bishopstoke Evangelical 
Church, Stoke Park Road, 
Bishopstoke  

Notice was given by Bishopstoke Parish Council that the Memorial Hall will 
permanently close and is scheduled for demolition.  Seeking alternative 
polling places, the Borough Ward Councillors suggested Bishopstoke 
Evangelical Church which has been assessed as suitable and is proposed as 
a permanent replacement for the voters in BI2 polling district. 

Representations Received 

3.  A total of 6 representations were received to the consultation, which can be 
summarised as follows: 

Feedback received from a Parish Councillor: who strongly supported the 
decision to move away from using schools as polling stations to ensure 
children do not miss out on education.  The Councillor also noted that 
consideration should be given to other child provisions such as premises used 
for pre-school to prevent disruptions to parents. 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 ARO response: Thanked the respondent for their positive response in 
support of moving away from schools and would consider identifying 
alternative polling stations venues to replace those that are used for 
other childcare facilities.   

Head Teacher commented: That they would be grateful if their school could 
not be used as a polling station due to the layout of the site, they must shut 
the school and it disrupts the children’s learning.  

ARO response: Thanked the respondent for their response and noted 
the detrimental impact of using the school has on the children.  

 The County Returning Officer commented: that the proposals had been 
reviewed and, subject to feedback from the consultations, has no concerns. 

ARO response: Thanked the respondent for their response. 

The Acting Returning Officer for the Winchester constituency responded: 
stating that she agrees with the proposals and confirmed that she also avoids 
using schools.  She asked that a communication plan be in place to inform 
voters of the new polling station locations. 

ARO for Eastleigh Constituency supports the comments of the ARO for 
Winchester Constituency and concurs that the venues were already 
used on polling day in May 2021 and confirmed that there will be a 
variety of communication campaigns prior to election day in May 2022.  

Borough Councillor commented: they agreed with the proposals and had their 
endorsement. 

ARO response: Thanked the respondent for their response. 

The Council’s Elections team concurred with the recommendations made by 
the ARO and support the approach for moving away from using school rooms 
as polling stations for all future polls.   

ARO thanks the team for their comments.  

Financial Implications 

4. The review has been conducted within existing staff resources and there are 
no additional financial implications as a result of the recommendations in this 
report. 

Risk Assessment 

5. As highlighted at the start of this report, the law places a duty on the Council 
to conduct reviews and, specifically within this, to ensure safe and 
appropriated access arrangements for both voters and staff.  During 2021, a 
full and comprehensive risk assessment was carried out for all polling stations 
in the Borough of Eastleigh and this includes the proposed changes in the 
report. 

9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

6.  The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as an appendix to the 
report.  In summary the EqIA shows that it relates to eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or fostering good relations 
between different people in the following ways: 

The aforementioned duty to conduct the review includes a responsibility to 
ensure that everyone who is entitled to vote can do so with equality of access 
– from actual arrangements at the polling station (such as provision of ramps 
and voting booths for the wheelchair users to cast their vote along with 
enlarged version of the ballot paper and a Braille voting device provided for 
the partially-sighted and blind) to the polling station being within a reasonable 
proximity to their home address. 

For the purposes of the review an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has 
been carried out, attached as an appendix to the report. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

7. This report has no climate implications.  The siting of multiple polling places in 
accessible locations in neighbourhoods and communities encourages people 
to travel sustainably to use them. 

Conclusion 

8. The review considers the arrangement for voting to permanently avoid using 
school rooms as polling stations.  Following a period of consultation, the ARO 
has considered the views submitted on the current and proposed 
arrangements and recommends the changes to polling stations made at the 
beginning of this report.  

Councillors are asked to consider the proposed changes and to make 
decisions that take account of the views received and the location of the 
polling stations in relation to the demographics of the area. 

 

NICHOLAS ROLAND TUSTIAN 
ACTING RETURNING OFFICER 

 
Date: 14 October 2021 
Contact Officer: Sam Jones  
Tel No: 023 8068 8201 
e-mail: sam.jones@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

List Background Papers - None. 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Equality Impact Assessment for Interim Polling Review 2021 
 
Eastleigh Borough Council is committed to promoting equality and participation in all our activities, whether it is 
related to the work we do with external stakeholders and the community or related to our responsibilities as an 
employer.   
 
As a public authority we are also required to have due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance 
equality of opportunity, and adopt good relations when making decisions and developing policies.  To do this it 
is necessary to understand the potential impacts of the range of internal and external activities on different 
groups of people. 
 
The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to help us ensure that: 

 we understand the potential effects of the review by assessing the impacts on different 
groups both external and internal 

 any adverse impacts are identified and actions identified to remove or mitigate them  

 decisions are transparent and based on evidence with clear reasoning. 
 
The questions below are a way of evaluating the Polling Review against the the different groups covered by 
the Equality Act that are reffered to a  protected characteristics: disability, gender reassignment, marriage or 
civil parternship status, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, sex (gender),  
and age. 
 

Service Area Electoral Services 
 

Date of assessment August 2021 
 

Name of strategy/policy/function/service to be 
assessed 

Interim Review of Polling Places and Polling 
Stations  

Is this a new or existing 
strategy/policy/function/service 

Existing 
 

Name of manager responsible for 
strategy/policy/function/service 

Joanne Cassar 

Name of people conducting the assessment Sam Jones 
 

Description of strategy/policy/function/service 
 

Describe the aims: objectives and purpose of the 
strategy/policy/function/service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The aim of the review is to ensure that: 

 electors  have reasonable facilities for voting as 
are practicable  

 polling places are accessible to all electors 
including those who are disabled   

 remove barriers to voting through improved access 
to polling stations and promotion of postal voting 

Question Response 
 

Are there any existing equality objectives of the 
strategy/policy or function/service? 
 

Inclusive, fair and well run election process and to 
increase the number of people voting in local 
elections 
 

Who is intended to benefit from the 
strategy/policy/function/service and in what way? 
 

All eligible residents of Eastleigh who are registered 
to vote in the Borough 

What are the intended outcomes of this 
strategy/policy/function/service? 

Fair, open and accessible election and high quality 
customer service 

13



 

 

  

Are there any potential positive or negative impacts on 
any of the protected characteristic groups listed below? 
 
Disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil 
partnership, pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sexual orientation, sex (gender), age 
 

None identified.  
 

 All polling stations have disabled access with 
ramps provided where required  

 There are postal/proxy provision available as an 
alternative method   

 Large print ballot papers are available in the 
polling station along devices for the partially sighted 

 Comply with closely prescribed legal guidance and 
monitor complaints received during an election 

 Schools will only be used as polling stations where 
no other suitable venue exists in accordance with 
Dfe and Electoral Commission guidelines 
 

What involvement and consultation has been done in 
relation this policy? (e.g. with relevant groups and 
stakeholders)? 
  

- Communication and publicity to raise 
awareness through social media i.e. council 
website, borough news, twitter, facebook, 
eNews 

- Contacted local disability groups and 
community groups 

- Council offices – posters on display  
- Contacted interested parties such as MP’s, 

councillors, Parish Councils, local political 
parties 

- Adjoining authority - Acting Returning Officer 
 

What is the final decision and action? 
 

There are no detrimental impacts on any of the 
groups but we will continue to strive to promote 
accessibility at polling stations for all the community  
 

   
 

14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Interim Review of Polling Stations and Polling Places 2021
	Appendix. 1 for Interim Review of Polling Stations and Polling Places 2021


